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Vision & Mission Statement

OUR ENVISIONED FUTURE
A company of nigerian origin, we will be extremely influential and highly visible in global technol-
ogy. our trusted cutting edge technology will enhance the quality of life in a manner that glorifies 
God. We would be employer of first choice.

OUR VISION
To be the leading provider of innovative and beneficial technologies that improves the quality of 
life.

OUR MISSION
To design and deploy innovative and beneficial technologies, while creating values for all our 
stakeholders

OUR CORE ValUES
1. Create a healthy and dynamic work environment characterized by Z-CASE

• Zero tolerance for excuses

• Candor 

• An entrepreneurial spirit,

• Strong bonds between past and present Chams family

• Excitement

2. It is imperative to delight our customers by making our technologies available 24/7

3. We commit to giving back to society through group activities that will positively impact on 
our communities.

4. Faith in God
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Directors, Officers & Professional 
Advisers
BOaRD OF DIRECTORS

 y Prof Adebayo Dada Akinde - Chairman
 y Sir. Demola Aladekomo - Managing Director
 y Alh. Idi Mohammed Farouk - Member
 y Engr Akin Sawyerr - Member
 y Alh. Tunde Yusuf - Member
 y Mr. Femi Williams - Member
 y Very Revd Ayo Richards - Member

C O M Pa N Y  S E C R E T a R Y

•	 Idowu logile Esq.

l E G a l  a D V I S E R

•	 Marriot Solicitors 
91 A, Lewis Street, 
Lagos.

•	 Straddle Partners 
199, Igbosere Road, 
Opposite High Court, 
Lagos.

R E G I S T E R E D  O F F I C E

•	 8, Louis Solomon Close, 
Off Ahmadu Bello Way, 
Victoria Island, Lagos.

a U D I T O R S

•	 BDO Professional Services 
ADOL House, 
IPM Avenue, 
Ikeja, Lagos.

R E G I S T R a R S

•	 First Registrars 
Plot 2, Abebe Village Road 
Iganmu, LagosBA Plc

B a N K E R S

•	 UBa PlC 
Plot 226, Idowu Taylor Street 
Victoria Island, 
Lagos.

•	 First Bank PlC 
Adeola Odeku 
Victoria Island 
Lagos.

•	 Zenith Bank PlC 
Ajose Adeogun 
Victoria Island 
Lagos.

•	 GTBank PlC 
Awolowo Road 
Ikoyi 
Lagos.

•	 Fidelity Bank PlC 
Kofo Abayomi Street 
Victoria Island 
Lagos

•	 Skye Bank PlC 
Adeola Hopewell Street 
Victoria Island 
Lagos

•	 Equitorial Trust Bank 
Adeola Odeku 
Victoria Island 
Lagos

•	 access Bank PlC 
Awolowo Road 
Ikoyi 
Lagos

•	 Wema Bank PlC 
Idowu Taylor Street 
Victoria Island 
Lagos
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 Notice of Annual General Meeting
noTICe IS HeReBY GIVen that the Twenty-eighth Annual General Meeting of Chams Plc will be 
held on Wednesday 21st november, 2012 at Chams PlC, Plot 1288, Ahmadu Bello Way, Garki, 
Area 11, Abuja, at 11:00 am for the transaction of the following businesses:

O R D I N a R Y  B U S I N E S S

1. To receive the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st december, 2011 and the reports of the directors, Audi-
tors and Audit Committee thereon.

2. To re-elect the directors.

3. To fix the remuneration of the directors.

4. To re-appoint the Auditors and authorize the directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

5. To elect/reelect members of the Audit Committee.

NOTES
a. PRoxIeS

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead 
of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy for an organization may vote on a show of hand and on a 
poll. To be valid, executed forms of proxy should be deposited at the registered office of the Company or with the Registrars not 
less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

b. CloSURe oF ReGISTeR

The Register of Members and the Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Thursday 8th october to Wednesday 14th 
october, 2012 both days inclusive.

c. AUdIT CoMMITTee

In accordance with section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20 lFn 2004, a shareholder may nominate 
another shareholder for appointment as a member of the Audit Committee by giving notice to the Company Secretary at least 
21 days before the Annual General Meeting. 

dated this 28th day of August, 2012

BY oRdeR oF THe BoARd

IDOWU LOGILE ESQ.
Company secretary

Chams PLC
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Chairman’s Statement

d
istinguished ladies and Gentlemen; it is my 
pleasure to welcome you to this year’s Annual 
General Meeting holding today 21st november, 
2012. As is customary, we will be presenting to 
you the audited financial Statements for the fi-

nancial year ended 31st december 2011, an overview of the 
operating environment and the performance of your com-
pany for the year.

O V E R V I E W  O F  T h E  O P E R a T I N G 
E N V I R O N M E N T

It was clear before the end of 2011 that many economies, 
particularly in europe were in for a double dip recession in-
stead of recovery. Members of the eurozone continue to make 
concerted efforts to ensure that bail-out packages are made 
available to the worst-hit economies.

2011 in nigeria was characterized mainly with the general 
elections and efforts by the Central Bank of nigeria (CBn) to 
make banking services more efficient and responsive to de-
mands in a world where change are rapid and resultants ef-
fects are profound.

The year under review, like 2010, witnessed an almost non-
existent provision of credit by the banks despite the CBn’s 
liquidity injection into the banking system.

The CBn cashless policy came alive with the introduction 
of various instruments and guidelines to drive its operations 
within the country. This was a good development for your 
company as it not only got the CBn’s license as a PTSP but 
also the approval to deploy the BITel brand terminals. Your 
company also got a license as a mobile payment operator in 
nigeria.

While these initiatives have generally been applauded to be 
steps I the right direction, there is no doubt that additional 
structures and reforms are required in order to consolidate on 
the gains made so far

O U R  P E R F O R M a N C E

Regrettably, the projects we have on hand and opportunities 
around us have not translated into the performance we envis-
aged when promises were made to distinguished gathering at 
the last Annual General Meeting.

Inconsistency in Government policies which affected some of 

our major projects, notably the Independent deployment and 
management of ATM’s and the national Id  Project coupled 
with the long incubation period of these projects have led to 
the sub-optimal turnover.

Your Board of directors and management have had great con-
cern about the level of performance of your company in the 
recent past. Realizing that urgent measures are required to re-
dress the situation, your Board of directors directed manage-
ment to carry out an internal stock taking exercise of the com-
pany to asses the state of the affairs of the company. More 
importantly, the Board embarked on an external assessment 
by engaging the services of consultants who have expertise 
and vast experience in business turnaround to help us in the 
reinvention and repositioning of your company for excellent 
performance.

All your directors participated actively in the exercise which 
has culminated in a strategic business plan that covers the 
next five years inclusive of a two-year corporate plan.

execution of these plans have commenced from the last quar-
ter of 2012. We see the light at the end of the tunnel and at 
this time covet your understanding and prayers.

B O a R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S

There are no changes to the Board of directors in the year under 
review.

F U T U R E  O U T l O O K

Several of the long awaited public sector projects have either 
been awarded or in execution stage. our new strategic direc-
tion is also taking us away from over dependence on public 
sector business. We have the people and infrastructure to de-
ploy in this new direction.

I wish to express my profound appreciation to the manage-
ment team for their dedication and sacrifices. I also thank my 
colleagues on the Board for their painstaking commitment 
and cooperation throughout the financial year. Finally, I thank 
our esteemed shareholders for their faithfulness and support 
for the company.

Thank you and God bless.

Rt. Rev.(Prof) a. D. akinde
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M a N a G I N G  D I R E C T O R ’ S  S P E E C h

A Brighter Tomorrow!
dear Shareholders

Y
ear 2011 was one year replete with notable events both in the political and business spheres with attendant effects on 

the performance of your firm, Chams Plc.

The year started on a bright note with signs that the global financial meltdown impacted by strategic interventions was 

beginning to give way to sound and promising future. economic and structural reforms held sway all through 2011.  

Whilst the reforms would seem to have benefited some sectors of the economy e.g the Banks, Telecommunication, Manufactur-

ing and Insurance, a greater percentage of companies in the other sectors were not so lucky.   

Businesses had to grapple with persistent threat of inflation throughout the year under review. In spite of CBn’s determined 

efforts to reduce inflation to single unit, it was never achieved.  In fact, the Consumer Price Index obtained from the national 

Bureau of Statistics (nBS) for the Month of december 2011 indicate that inflation rate in nigeria only dropped marginally from 

10.5% in november, 2012 to end the year at 10.3%.

Though the management of your company worked tirelessly to avert any possible adverse impact that the year under review 

could have on our businesses, we however, still fell behind on our expectations due primarily to the following reasons:

1. Limited access to credit in the local banking sector due to current banking reforms 

2. Policy inconsistency of government and its attendant effects on businesses and projects 

3. Continued delay of national budget and poor implementation which led to its extension to the third and 4th quarters 

of the year 2011.

CONTINUOUS RESTRUCTURING 

The year 2011 witnessed the commencement of a deliberate change of strategy for competiveness in view of the prevailing economic 

challenges. We also restructured parts of our business to a central location as parts of efforts at efficient use of space and other re-

sources. 

The Group restructuring is still ongoing and this will continue until we find a right balance that will help us deliver on our promises to 

our valued stakeholders.

CBN “CaShlITE” PROJECT 

At Chams, we are already poised to take full advantage of the Central Bank of nigeria’s “Cashlite” project. our Approval-In-Principle 

(AIP) mobile payment license which was obtained in the previous year is already being deployed on a pilot phase with remarkable suc-

cess. The solution characterized by our usual innovativeness and ease of use and cutting edge technology promises to change the face 

of payment in nigeria. It must be mentioned that this singular solution is the future of transactional and payment processes with its 

huge propensity to dramatically yield untold value for our esteemed stakeholders. We are primed to roll out in full force with a view to 

capturing a substantial size of the market.
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PaYMENT TERMINal SERVICE PROVIDER (PTSP) lICENSE aND 
TERMINal CERTIFICaTION

In furtherance of the CBn’s “Cashlite” project, we were awarded a PTSP license by the apex bank through one of our subsidiary com-

panies -Paymaster. The license is to enable your company deploy and maintain Point of Sales Terminal which is projected to be one of 

the major channels of the Cashlite project. It is important also to note here that the Central Bank of nigeria (CBn) also approved BITel  

PoS/PoT as one of the terminals to be deployed for the project. This particular brand of terminal is exclusively represented in nigeria by 

your company.

May we state here that the Cashlite project kicked off very well and has been gathering momentum by  the day since then. We are 

convinced that it is the best for our economy at this time. If the apex bank sustains the awareness of the project, it will only be a mat-

ter of time for our people to catch up with the culture of reducing the level of cash they carry around. needless to mention that your 

company is poised to take maximum advantage of this project with our innvative products and solutions.

CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE 

As we said at our last AGM, your company appointed a group Head, Internal Audit, as a result of our resolve to ensure a strong risk 

management and adherence to Corporate Governance. The Board Committees were further strengthened in order to enable them 

deliver on their mandate. These changes have helped in our overall objectives of maintaining integrity and independence of the board 

of directors’ supervisory responsibilities and that of management.

PREPaRING FOR ThE FUTURE

The future, I can say with all sense of certainty is bright. Though we have had unexpected delays in several of our projects due to the 

prevailing operating environment, but we have sound strategies to survive the storm.

At our last AGM, we promised shareholders an improved performance based on our projections for the 2011. The first two quarters 

of the looked very promising and this was the partly the basis for our promises. However, the general elections of 2011 stalled a lot of 

businesses in the country as attention was focused on completing the exercise.

A lot of business activities suffered from this unfortunate incident and our firm was not spared. The persistent security challenges that 

have rocked several parts of the country also have had a very negative impact on businesses. These events have made our firm to re-

strategize in order to remain in business and deliver on our promises to shareholders. 

It might have taken longer than expected, but we believe that with all the investments that we have made in the firm and the unfolding 

opportunities, our future is certainly bright. Perhaps because of the nature of our very dynamic Industry (ICT), the story of Chams is one 

replete with challenges and victory. We have faced several odds right from the foundation of this Company to get to its current position. 

The good story however is that we have always triumphed in the end. Today, there are still challenges that we face but because of our 

faith in God and our dogged commitment coupled with your support, we are confident that it can only get better.

As a Company noted for innovation, Chams will not relent in the quest towards breaking new grounds in innovation. While working on 

new solutions that will deliver additional value to our nation and make our shareholders smile. Several of the projects that have been 

in development stage and the ones being pursued are all gradually coming through with one award after the other. one thing that 

we will promise you by the grace of God is that your company has a brighter future. Paradoxically, new government policies make our 

technologies very relevant to the future and this is where we believe that we will continue to have the edge over others.

I must sincerely commend you, our esteemed shareholders for your patience and continued support these past challenging years, be 

assured that we are committed to returning a worthwhile and bountiful harvest for your faith and investment, which is why we are still 

in business. Thank you for your attention and God Bless you.

Demola aladekomo
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Corporate Governance

T
he companies that make up the Chams Group are 
advocates and practitioners of corporate governance 
codes. The practice of corporate governance fosters 
openness, transparency, accountability, honesty, self-
lessness, integrity, leadership and performance mea-

surement. This is visible through the adherence of international 
best practice in the following areas:

COMPlIaNCE WITh ThE CODE OF 
CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE

The Board as a whole is comprised of a number of sub-com-
mittees amongst which are audit and finance committees. The 
Board is comprised of high profile non-executive members serv-
ing in various capacities in the sub-committees mentioned above 
and involved in setting the emoluments of the managing direc-
tor and other directors of the company. The non-executive direc-
tors are appointed for a fixed period and have to be re-elected 
by the shareholders at an AGM. The company is committed to 
full disclosure and transparency in providing information to all 
stakeholders because of its belief that this is the most important 
driving force in any good governance process.

RISK MaNaGEMENT FUNCTION

Across the group, the internal audit function ensures that com-
pliance, operational and financial controls are in place, in order 
to minimize risk. The Internal Audit unit ensures that these func-
tions are performed. The Audit Committee also has risk manage-
ment oversight function to ensure full compliance.

PUBlIShING OF FINaNCIal 
STaTEMENTS aND aUDITORS 
REPORT

The implementation of audit exercises and the publishing of 
company annual reports as well as group annual reports help 
to foster transparency and openness. The use of highly qualified 
external auditors from reputable audit firms helps to minimize 
external risks as well as ensuring that information contained in 
financial reports are accurate. Your company is continuously 
working on improving the free flow of information to all stake-
holders and the public. 

COMMUNICaTION BETWEEN 
BOaRD OF DIRECTORS aND 
ShaREhOlDERS

Apart from the Annual General Meetings, your company has 
recognised the need to carry the shareholders along through 
periodic sensitization of developments in the organization. This 
is to ensure that there is an avenue for continuous flow of infor-
mation and to foster better understanding.

CORPORaTE SOCIal 
RESPONSIBIlITY

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of the activi-
ties of the companies in the Chams Group. We believe in giving 
back to the society and this is done through activities such as 
the Chams Theatre series ,a strategic contribution of Chams Plc 
to the rejuvenation of the Arts in nigeria and the soup kitchen 
through which we reach the under-privileged and disadvan-
taged in the society.

The amount of donation and charitable gifts the Chams Group 
made amounted to n27,936.465.11 in 2011.

GOal CONGRUENCE aMONG 
STaKEhOlDER GROUPS

This has to do with ensuring that there is synergy between di-
rectors and shareholders thereby reducing conflict and ensuring 
that directors fully maximize the wealth of shareholders. other 
stakeholders are also taken into consideration such as suppliers, 
employees and so on, in order to ensure that components of 
each organization are working in tandem towards the realiza-
tion of stated objectives.

REMUNERaTION

The remuneration of directors and top-level management are 
performance based. This is to ensure that the company does not 
reward directors and managers for failure and non-performance.

QUalITY CONTROl

Revalidation of iSo 9001: 2008
The organizations within the Chams Group work assiduously to 
ensure that their operations meet international standards. This 
can be seen through the award of ISo certification to some 
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member companies in the group while plans towards getting 
ISo certified are in top dear for those yet to be certified.

BOaRD FINaNCE aND 
CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE 
COMMITTEE

The committee acts on behalf of the Board on matters relat-
ing to financial management. It reviews the budget, audited 
accounts and is responsible for providing useful advices to the 
company’s management team as and when required. The mem-
bers are as follows:

name status no of 

Meetings

Atten-

dance

Very Rev Ayo Richards Chairman 4 4

Alh. Tunde Yusuf Member 4 4

Mr. demola Aladekomo Member 4 4

Idowu logile esq. Secretary 4 4

olayinka Ikiebe Member 4 4

Christiana olaniyan Member 4 4

aUDIT COMMITTEE

This is established in accordance with part C of the code of 
corporate governance. It comprises dedicated individuals with 
proven integrity that have a thorough understanding of stan-
dard practice.

name status no of 

Meetings

Atten-

dance

Mr. emmanuel onochie Chairman 3 3

Very Rev Ayo Richards Member 3 3

Alh. Tunde Yusuf Member 3 3

Mr. Moses Igbrude Member 3 3

BOaRD MEETINGS

The Board and its committees met as follows:

Board/Committee Meeting no of 

Meetings

Board of directors 4

Chams Plc Audit Committee 3

Board Finance and Corporate Governance 
Committee

4

aTTENDaNCE aT BOaRD 
MEETINGS FOR ThE YEaR ENDED 
31ST DECEMBER 2011

Director no of 

Meetings

Attendance

Rt. Revd. (Prof) A. d. Akinde 4 4

Mr. demola Aladekomo 4 4

Alh. Idi Farouk 4 2

Alh. Tunde Yusuf 4 4

engr. Akin Sawyerr 4 4

Mr. Femi Williams 4 4

Very Rev Ayo Richards 4 -

aUDITORS

The Auditors, Messrs Bdo Professional Services have indicated 
their willingness to continue in office in accordance with Sec-
tion 357(2) of the Company and Allied Matters Act of nigeria, 
a resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to 
authorise some of the directors to fix their remuneration. 

BY oRdeR oF THe BoARd

Idowu Logile Esq.
CoMPAnY SeCReTARY 
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Directors’ Report 
FOR ThE YEaR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

T
he directors present their annual report on the af-

fairs of Chams Plc (“the Company”), and subsidiaries 

(together “the Group”), together with the group au-

dited financial statements and the auditor’s report for 

the year ended 31 december 2011.

lEGal FORM

The company was incorporate as a private limited company on 

September 19th 1985 and became a public limited company in 

2007. At the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company 

on 6 June 2008, the shareholders authorised the directors to 

change the name Chams nigeria PlC to ChaMS PlC. Subse-

quent to the Placements authorised by the shareholders, an ap-

plication was made to the Council of the nigeria Stock exchange 

for the admission of all the issued and paid up shares of the 

Company to the daily official list of the exchange through list-

ing by Introduction. 

PRINCIPal aCTIVITIES 

The principal activities of Chams Plc and its subsidiaries continue 

to be provision of identification, transaction and payment solu-

tions. This includes the development, deployment, implementa-

tion and maintenance of technol-

ogy based systems, computing 

and solutions platforms, commu-

nication infrastructure and other 

services designed to facilitate the 

operations of all forms of elec-

tronic business.

SUBSIDIaRIES 

The company has Four subsidiar-

ies; CardCentre Nigeria lim-

ited, engaged in the production 

and manufacturing of Cards – 

Identity, payments, Smart cards 

et al; PayMaster limited, en-

gaged in the deployment of Point 

of Transaction and point of sales terminals; Chamsacccess 

limited, licensed consortium for the deployment of ATMs in the 

country also involved in the deployment of multi application ter-

minals; and ChamsSwitch , engaged in provision of the e-pay-

ment transaction processing platform for the nigerian Market.   

OPERaTING RESUlTS

The following is a highlight of the Company’s operating results 

for the year under review:

 

 

 

Company Company

2011 2010

n’000 n’000

Turnover 1,777,737 1,309,435 
Cost of sales (1,090,951) (784,415) 
Gross profit 686,786 525,020 
Profit before taxation (1,198,400) (596,616) 
Earnings per share(naira)(adjusted) 0 0 

ShaRE CaPITal hISTORY 

year Authorised Issued share 

Capital

Consideration

Increase Cummulative Increase Cummulative

1985 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 Cash

2004 99,900,000 100,000,000 0 100,000 Cash

2005 200,000,000 300,000,000 0 100,000 Cash

2006 0 300,000,000 99,900,000 100,000,000 Cash

2007 2,200,000,000 2,500,000,000 72,060,000 172,060,000 Cash

2007 2,500,000,000 5,000,000,000 172,060,000 344,120,000 Cash

2007 0 5,000,000,000 1,378,480,000 1,720,600,000 4 for 1 Bonus

2008 0 5,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 3,720,600,000 Cash

2008 0 5,000,000,000 975,000,000 4,696,060,000 Cash

2009 0 5,000,000,000 0 4,696,060,000. Cash

2010 0 5,000,000,000 0 4,696,060,000 Cash

2011 0 5,000,000,000 0 4,696,060,000 Cash
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DIRECTORS WhO SERVED DURING 
ThE YEaR

The following directors served during the year under review:

name Designation

Bishop A.d. Akinde Chairman

Mr. demola Aladekomo Managing 
director

Alhaji  Idi Mohammed Farouk Member

engr. Akin Sawyer Member

Mr. Femi Williams Member

Mr. Tunde Yusuf Member

Revd Ayo Richards Member

1. Directors’ interest in shares

The direct interest of directors in the issued share capital of 
Chams Plc as recorded in the register of directors shareholding 
and/or as notified by the directors for the purposes of sections 
275 and 276 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and the 
listing requirements of the nigerian Stock exchange is as fol-
lows:      

Dec. 2011 

Direct Units

Dec. 2010 

Direct Units

2009 Direct 

Units

1. Bishop A.d. Akinde 30,215,000 30,215,000 30,215,000

2. engr. Akin Sawyerr 3,240,000 3,240,000 3,240,000

3. Alh. Tunde Yussuf 69,750,000 50,000,000 50,000,000

4. Alh. Idi Farouk 13,240,000 13,240,000 13,240,000

5. demola Aladekomo 563,990,229 563,990,229 549,550,229

6. olufemi Williams 32,000,000 32,000,000 32,000,000

7. Very Rev. Ayo 
Richards

1,087,000 1,087,000 0

DISClOSURE OF SUBSTaNTIal 
ShaREhOlDING (aBOVE 5%) aS 
aT DECEMBER 2011

a. demola Aladekomo  563,990,229 12.02

b. SmartCity 462,068,759 9.8

S h a R E h O l D I N G  a N a lY S I S

The analysis of the distribution of the shares of the Company as 
at 31 december 2011 is as follows:

analYSiS of SHaReHoldinG 
The analysis of the distribution of the shares of the Company as 
at 31 december 2010 is as follows: 

Range of shares number of 
sharehold-

ers

% number of shares

1-1,000 504 4.86% 329,680 

1,001- 5,000 1,266 16.08% 4,120,913 

5,001- 10,000 911 15.05% 7,759,362 

10,001 - 20,000 717 8.76% 11,600,002 

20,001 - 50,000 1662 11.15% 63,873,350 

50,001 - 100,000 1090 14.34% 93,734,515 

100,001 - 200,000 688 8.35% 114,568.671 

200,001 - 500,000 727 9.66% 270,167,391 

500,000 - 10,000,000 800 11.04% 1,661,120,886 

10,000,001 and above 55 0.71% 2,468,785,230 

8420 100% 4,696,060,000 

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the articles of association, engr. Akin Sawyerr 
and Alhaji Idi Farouk appointed directors since the last Annual 
General Meeting will retire at this Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offer themselves for re-election. 

S T a T E M E N T  O F  D I R E C T O R S ’ 
R E S P O N S I B I l I T I E S  F O R  T h E 
F I N a N C I a l  S T a T E M E N T S  F O R 
T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R 
2 0 1 1

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act of nigeria, the directors are responsible for the prep-
aration of financial statements, which give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for 
that year. In so doing, the directors are required to ensure that:

a. Proper accounting records are maintained which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Com-
pany and which ensures the financial statements comply 
with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters 
Act.

b. Applicable accounting standards are followed.

c. Suitable accounting policies are adopted and consistently 
applied.

d. Judgments and estimates made are reasonable and pru-
dent.

e. The going concern basis is used, unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the Company will continue in business.

f. Internal control procedures are instituted which, as far as is 
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reasonably possible, safeguard the assets of the Company 
and prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

D O N a T I O N S  a N D  C h a R I T a B l E 
G I F T S 

The Company identifies with the aspirations of the community 
as well as the environment within which it operates and made 
voluntary donations to various charitable organizations and oth-
er institutions in the country details of which are shown below. 
no donation was made to any political organization. 

The Company during the year donated a total sum of 
n27,936,465.11 to 

Details of donations n

donation of 10 Averatec Computer systems 
to lagos State University

1,975,255.10

donation of 10 Averatec computer systems 
to osun State University

1,975,255.10

donation of 1 computer system to The 
Apostolic Church Grammar Sch

197,525.10

donation of 2 Averatec computer systems 
for educational causes

395,041.02

donation towards Community 
development – eze epara (Port-Harcourt)

200,000.00

donation to oAU Tech Foundations 300,000.00

donations in support of ‘I See lagos 
Project’

15,000,000.00

donations in support of Kaduna project 5,000,000.00

donation to nigerian Computer Society 1,196,689.19

Various corporate gifts to clients 830,000.00

donations in support of funeral services 
(Staff)

500,000.00

donation to dATA Foundation 170,000.00

donations regarding Chams 26th 
Anniversary 

100,000.00

donation to nigerian Computer Society 46,689.19

Total 27,936,465.11

F I x E D  a S S E T S

Information relating to changes in tangible assets is given in note 
6 of the financial statement.

E M P l O Y M E N T  a N D  E M P l O Y E E S

a. employment of physically challenged persons 
The Company has a non-discriminatory policy on recruit-
ment. Applications would always be welcomed from suit-
ably qualified disabled persons and are reviewed strictly on 
qualification. The Company’s policy is that the highest quali-
fied and most experienced persons are recruited for appro-
priate job levels irrespective of an applicant’s state of origin, 
ethnicity, religion or physical condition.

b. Health safety and welfare of employees 
Health and safety regulations are in force within the Com-
pany’s premises and employees are aware of existing 
regulations. The Company provides subsidies to all level of 
employees for medical expenses, transportation, housing, 
lunch etc.

c. employees involvement and training 
The Company is committed to keeping employees fully 
informed as much as possible regarding the Company’s 
performance and progress and seeking their opinion where 
practicable on matters, which particularly affect them as 
employees.

Training is carried out at various levels through both in-house 
and external courses. Incentive schemes designed to encourage 
the involvement of employees in the Company’s performance 
are implemented whenever appropriate.

POST BalaNCE ShEET EVENTS

There were no post balance sheet events which could have had 
a material effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 
december 2011 or the profit for the year ended on that date, 
which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.

COMPlIaNCE WITh ThE CODE OF 
CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE

Chams Plc continuously strives to comply with global standards 
of corporate governance. The Company has separated the posts 
of Managing director and Chairman and the Chairman is not in-
volved in the day-to-day running of the Company. This is geared 
towards avoiding the concentration of too much power in a 
single individual.

The Board as a whole is comprised of a number of sub-Com-
mittees amongst which are Audit, Finance and Corporate Gov-
ernance Committees. The Board is also comprised of high pro-
file non-executive members serving in various capacities at the 
sub-Committees mentioned above and involved in setting the 
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emoluments of the Managing director and other directors of 
the Company. The non-executive directors are appointed for a 
fixed period and have to be re-elected by the shareholders at an 
AGM. The Company is committed to full disclosure and trans-
parency in providing information to all stakeholders because of 
its belief that this is the most important driving force in any good 
governance process.

BOaRD FINaNCE aND 
CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE 
COMMITTEE

The Committee acts on behalf of the Board on matters relating 
to Financial Management. It reviews the Budget and Audited 
Accounts and is responsible for providing useful advice to the 
Company’s management team as and when required. 

The members are as follows:

name status

Very Rev Ayo Richards Chairman

Alh. Tunde Yusuf Member

Mr. demola Aladekomo Member

Idowu logile esq. Secretary

olayinka Ikiebe Member

Christiana olaniyan Member

aUDIT COMMITTEE

This is established in accordance with part C of the Code of 
Corporate Governance. It comprises dedicated individuals with 
proven integrity that have a thorough understanding of the 
Company’s business affairs including the associated risks and 
controls put in place to mitigate those risks. The Company Sec-
retary is the secretary of the Committee and they meet regularly. 
The members are as follows:

Mr. onochie emmanuel Chairman

Alh. Tunde Yusuf Member

Very Rev Ayo Richards Member

Mr. Femi Williams Member

Mr. Moses Igbrude Member

BOaRD MEETING

The Board and its Committees met as follows:

Board/Committee Meeting no of 

meetings

Board of directors 4

Chams Audit Committee 2

Board Finance and Corporate Governance 
Committee

2

aTTENDaNCE aT BOaRD 
MEETINGS FOR ThE YEaR ENDED 
31 DECEMBER 2011

Directors no of 
Meetings

Attendance

Bishop A.d. Akinde 4 4

Mr. demola Aladekomo 4 4

Alhaji Idi Farouk 4 4

Mr. Tunde Yusuf 4 4

Mr. Femi Williams 4 4

engr. Akin Sawyer 4 4

Chief Bankole Moroti 4 4

aUDITORS

Bdo Professional Services have indicated their willingness to 
continue in office. In accordance with Section 357(2) of the 
Company and Allied Matters Act of nigeria, a resolution will be 
proposed at the Annual General Meeting to authourise the di-
rectors to fix their remuneration. 

BY oRdeR oF THe BoARd

IDOWU lOGIlE esq.

dated this 13th day of March 2012 
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Most Reverend Prof 
Adebayo dada Akinde 
Chairman

Alhaji Tunde Yusuf
Director Alhaji Idi Farouk

Director

demola Aladekomo 
Managing Director

The Board of Directors
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olufemi Williams 
deputy Managing Director

Very Reverend Ayo Richards 
Director

engr Akin Sawyerr
Director
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demola Aladekomo 
Managing Director

olayinka Ikiebe 
GM, Management services

Funke Alomooluwa 
GM, ChamsCity

Rajiv Sharma 
GM, ChamsVarsity

olushola omotayo 
GM, Public sector

olufemi Williams 
deputy Managing Director

Idowu logile 
Company Secretary

Chams Management Staff

olumayowa olaniyan 
Group Head, Internal 
Audit and Risk 
Management
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Gavin Young 
Managing Director,  
Chamsswitch

Funke Alomooluwa 
GM, ChamsAccess

Goke Idris 
Managing Director,  
Card Centre nigeria Limited

Charles Uwagbale 
Managing Director,  
PayMaster

Femi Aderibigbe 
Managing Director,  
ChamsConsortium  Limited

Matthew ogunbukola 
Deputy Managing Director,  
ChamsMobile

Chams PLC Subsidiary Heads



Hope springs eternal

Report of the Audit committee
To THe MeMBeRS oF ChaMS PlC

In accordance with the provision of section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C20 laws of the Federation of nigeria 

2004, we confirm that we have reviewed the audit plan and scope, and the Management letter on the audit of the accounts of the 

Company and the responses to the said letter.

In our opinion, the plan and scope of the audit for the period ended december 2010 were adequate. We have reviewd the Auditors’ 

findings and we are satisfied with the Management responses theron.

We also confirm that the accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements and ethical 

practices.

Mr emmanuel onochie

Chairman Audit Committee

12th July, 2011

M E M B E R S  O F  T h E  a U D I T  C O M M I T T E E

 y Mr emmanuel onochie - Chairman

 y Mr Tunde Yusuf - Member

 y Chief J. o. Sanusi - Member 

 y The Very Rev. Ayo Richards - Member

 y Mr Moses Igbrude - Member
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Report of the Independent Auditors
To THe MeMBeRS oF CHAMS PLC

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Chams Plc (“the Company”) and its subsidiary Companies (to-
gether “the group”), which comprise the balance sheets as at 31 
december 2011, the profit and loss accounts, the statement of 
cash flows, the value added statement for the year then ended 
and the statement of significant accounting policies, the notes 
to the financial statements and the five year financial summary, 
as set out on pages 3 to 22.

D I R E C T O R S ’  R E S P O N S I B I l I T Y 
F O R  T h E  F I N a N C I a l 
S T a T E M E N T S

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair pres-
entation of these  financial statements in accordance with the 
Statements of Accounting Standards issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council of nigeria and with the requirements of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 lFn, 2004. This 
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintain-
ing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair pres-
entation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error, selecting and ap-
plying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

a U D I T O R S ’  R E S P O N S I B I l I T Y

our responsibility is to express an independent opinion on 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance as to whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal controls.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonable-
ness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

E M P h a S I S  O F  M a T T E R

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 4 
to the financial statements concerning accumulated losses and 
negative cash flows.

O P I N I O N

In our opinion, these financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of Chams Plc and its subsidiary Com-
panies financial position as at 31 december 2011 in accordance 
with Statements of Accounting Standards issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council of nigeria and requirements of the Compa-
nies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 lFn, 2004.

R E P O R T  O N  O T h E R  l E G a l 
R E Q U I R E M E N T S

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 lFn, 2004 re-
quires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to 
you on the following matters.  We confirm that:

i. we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

ii. in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by 
Chams Plc and its subsidiary companies and

iii. the entity’s balance sheet and profit and loss account are in 
agreement with the books of account.

Chartered Accountants 

lagos, nigeria

30 March 2012
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Basic facts 

Population 136.5m Inflation 16.9% (2004)* 

Main languages English (official), Hausa, Yoruba and Igbo GDP per head US$477* 

Currency Naira (NGN) GDP growth 4.4% (2004)* 

Economic communities WTO   

GDP sources 36.6% agriculture, 30.3% industry, 33.1% services   

*Economist Intelligence Unit estimate. 

Political environment 

Nigeria is a federal republic in which an executive presidency appoints a Federal Executive Council, comprising 
government ministers and ministers of state from each of Nigeria’s 36 states. The executive is accountable to the 
bicameral National Assembly. 

Olusegun Obasanjo, a former military ruler who won election as Nigeria’s second civilian president in May 1999, was  
re-elected in May 2003. The president’s People’s Democratic Party (PDP) has majorities in both houses of the National 
Assembly. New elections are scheduled for 2007. 

Foreign trade and investment 

Exports US$33.7bn (2004)* Imports US$17.3bn (2004)* 

*Economist Intelligence Unit estimate. 

Major exports: Crude oil, cocoa and rubber. 

Leading export markets: US (largest), Brazil, Spain, France and China. 

Nigeria ranks 59th of 60 countries in the Economist Intelligence Unit’s business environment rankings. 

Business and financing 

Business forms Limited-liability company  

Foreign companies, banks and oil-services companies operating in Nigeria must be incorporated locally. If a company 
obtains permission to establish a branch, it will not necessarily enjoy tax-free status. Foreign firms tend to deal mainly 
with banks that have a foreign affiliation and the larger domestic commercial banks. 

Lagos is the main financial centre, but the major banks also have a presence in Abuja, the nation’s capital, to service the 
public sector; in Port Harcourt to service oil-sector needs; and in Kano, Nigeria’s second-largest commercial centre. 

Labour environment 

Unemployment rate 2.6% (2004)* Minimum wage NGN 7,500 (monthly) 

*Economist Intelligence Unit estimate.  

The minimum wage is NGN 7,500 per month for private-sector workers and NGN 5,500 per month for  
public-sector workers. 

Nigeria has an abundant supply of unskilled labour. 

A publication of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in co-operation with the Economist Intelligence Unit 
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Statement Of Significant Accounting 
Policies 
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1 

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by 
the Company in the preparation of its financial statements:

1 .  B a S I S  O F  a C C O U N T I N G
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost basis as modified by the inclusion of motor ve-
hicles, furniture, fittings, building and equipment at professional 
valuation.

2 .  T U R N O V E R
Turnover comprises the value of sales invoiced to third parties. 
Contract revenue is recognised in phases throughout the life of 
the project while related costs are matched against the phases. 
Additional cost incurred for a phase not recognised as revenue is 
treated as work in progress.

3 .  F I x E D  a S S E T S
Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated de-
preciation. The cost of assets includes purchase cost, installation 
cost and other cost incurred to bring the assets to its present 
location and condition.

4 .  D E P R E C I a T I O N  O F  F I x E D 
a S S E T S

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis at the fol-
lowing annual rates which are expected to write off the cost or 
valuation of the assets over their anticipated useful lives:

% per an-
num

land - 

Buildings 2

Plant and machinery 15

Motor vehicles 25

Furniture and fittings 25

equipment 25

IT Software 20

5 .  I N V E S T M E N T
long term investments: These are investments held for a period 
exceeding one year. These include: 

 y investment in subsidiaries, associates and unquoted com-
panies.

 y long term investments are accounted for at cost less provi-
sion for impairment in value.

 y Investments in associates: This class of investment is treat-
ed using equity method in accordance with Statement of 
Accounting Standards, SAS 28, on Accounting for invest-
ments.

 y Investment income is accounted for on an accrual basis.

 y Investment projects: These represent the development 
costs of business lines which are amortised over a period 
not exceeding 5 years.

6 .  S T O C K S
These comprise saleable goods held and services rendered by 
the Company at the balance sheet date. 

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs include purchase cost, conversion-cost (materials, labour 
and overhead) and other costs incurred in bringing the stock to 
their present location and condition. Stocks are valued using the 
First-in-first-out(FIFo) method.

The amount of any write off of stock to net realisable value and 
all losses of stock are recognised as an expense in the period the 
write down or loss occurs.

7 .  D E B T O R S
debtors are  stated after deduction of specific provision for 
any debt considered to be doubtful of recovery. debts that are 
known to be bad are written off and specific provision is made 
for debts that are considered doubtful of recovery.



Chams PLC 2011 annual Report

25

8 .  T a x a T I O N
Income tax and education tax are provided by applying the cur-
rent statutory rate on the taxable profit and adjusted profit re-
spectively

9 .  D E F E R R E D  T a x a T I O N
deferred tax, which is principally from timing difference in the 
recognition of items for accounting and tax purposes, is calculat-
ed using the liability method. This represents taxation at the cur-
rent rate of corporate income tax on the difference between the 
net book value of qualifying fixed assets and their corresponding 
tax written down values. This is in accordance with Statement of 
Accounting Standards, SAS 19, on Accounting for Taxes.

1 0 .  F O R E I G N  C U R R E N C I E S
Transaction in foreign currencies are recorded in naira at the 
rates of exchange ruling at the time they arise. Foreign currency 
balances are converted to naira at the applicable rates at the 
balance sheet date.

All differences arising therefrom are dealt with in the profit and 
loss account.

1 1 .  P R O V I S I O N S
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ob-
ligation whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event 
for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation 
in accordance with the Statement of Accounting Standard, SAS 
23, on Accounting for provisions.

1 2 .  S E G M E N T  R E P O R T I N G
The Company has three major business segments: Identity Man-
agement & Solutions, Payments, Collections & Transactional Sys-
tem and digital Platform & ICT Training. Segment revenue and 
cost represent operating revenue and expenses respectively that 
are directly attributable to each business segment.

1 3 .  R E N T a l  I N C O M E
Rental income represents income earned on the portion of the 
Company owned building(s). The income is recognised on an 
accrual basis.

1 4 .  B O R R O W I N G  C O S T S
Borrowing costs associated with loans utilized in executing/ac-
quisition of qualifying capital work in progress are capitalized 
in accordance with the provisions of International Accounting 
Standard no. 23. They include interest charges, establishment 

fees and other incidental fees directly related to the creation and 
arrangement of the facilities.

1 5 .  R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T S
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme 
for members of staff which is independent of its finances and is 
managed by Pension Fund Administrators. The scheme, which 
is funded by contributions from employees and the Company 
at 7.5% each of employees’ relevant emoluments is consistent 
with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act, 2004.  In addi-
tion, full provision is made in the financial statements for liabili-
ties at the balance sheet date in respect of employees’ terminal 
gratuities based on current relevant emoluments in line with SAS 
8. The associated costs are charged to the profit and loss ac-
count for the year.

1 6 .  C a S h  a N D  C a S h 
E Q U I Va l E N T S

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents include cash in hand, cash balances with banks, net 
of overdrafts, all of which are available for use by the company 
unless otherwise stated.

1 7 .  I N T a N G I B l E  a S S E T S
expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated intan-
gible asset arising from development expenditure is recognised 
only if it is anticipated that the development cost incurred on a 
clearly -defined project will be recovered through future com-
mercial activities. Capitalised development costs are stated at 
cost less amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of 
development cost is charged to profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful life of the underlying products 
of 10 years.
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At A Glance
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

GRoUP CoMPAny

2011
n’000

2010
n’000

2011
n’000

2010
n’000

Turnover  1,777,737  1,484,915  1,309,435  791,756 

Gross profit (loss)  686,786  520,233  525,020  293,446 

operating profit (loss)  (972,162)  (1,525,942)  (379,252)  (932,949)

Loss on ordinary activities before 
taxation

 (1,198,400)  (1,801,323)  (596,618)  (1,205,986)

Provision for taxation  (38,582)  424,710  (36,054)  438,992 

Profit (Loss) after taxation and 
extraordinary item 

 (1,236,982)  (1,791,898)  (632,672)  (1,147,700)

BALANCE SHEET FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011
n’000

2010
n’000

2011
n’000

          2010
n’000

Fixed Asset  2,998,652  3,855,407  1,869,315  2,345,090 

net current assets  658,282  1,092,275  3,149,631  3,038,595 

net worth  4,011,215  5,151,734  6,831,722  7,381,689 

share capital  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030 
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Consolidated Profit And Loss 
Account
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011           2010 2011          2010

notes n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

Turnover 5  1,777,737  1,484,915  1,309,435  791,756 

Cost of sales  (1,090,951)  (964,682)  (784,415)  (498,310)

Gross profit  686,786  520,233  525,020  293,446 

other operating income 8  478,234  259,151  392,983  276,810 

Administrative expenses  (2,137,182)  (2,305,326)  (1,297,255)  (1,503,205)

operating loss  (972,162)  (1,525,942)  (379,252)  (932,949)

Interest receivable and similar income  2  207  2  2 

Interest payable and similar charges  (226,240)  (275,588)  (217,368)  (273,039)

loss on ordinary activities before taxation 9  (1,198,400)  (1,801,323)  (596,618)  (1,205,986)

exceptional item 10  -  (5,616)  -  (380,706)

Taxation 12  (38,582)  424,710  (36,054)  438,992 

loss after taxation before extraordinary 
item

 (1,236,982)  (1,382,229)  (632,672)  (1,147,700)

extraordinary item 11  -  (409,669)  -  - 

loss after taxation and extraordinary item 

transferred to revenue reserve  (1,236,982)  (1,791,898)  (632,672)  (1,147,700)

Attributable to:

owners of the company 32  (1,101,562)  (1,609,820)  (632,672)  (1,147,700)

non-controlling interests 33  (135,420)  (182,078) -  - 

loss per share (Kobo) - Basic 37  (26)  (29)  (13)  (24)
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The financial statements on pages 2 to 20 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27th March 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

The accounting policies on pages 2 and 3 and the explanatory notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
a S  a T  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

____________________________ )
 )  Directors

____________________________ )

GRoUP CoMPAnY

notes
2011

n’000
2010

n’000
2011

n’000
2010

n’000NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 13  2,998,652  3,855,407  1,869,315  2,345,090 

Intangible assets 14  160,231  -  115,231  - 

long term investments 15  126,709  126,709  1,630,204  1,894,907 

Investment projects 18  93,157  103,160  93,157  103,160 

 3,378,749  4,085,276  3,707,907  4,343,157 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks 20  1,079,779  1,309,947  177,580  271,115 

Trade debtors 21  1,515,716  1,539,644  1,111,686  1,102,518 

Prepayments and other debtors 22  1,440,280  1,308,928  2,540,384  2,592,583 

due from related companies 23  230,769  223,058  1,847,060  1,791,337 

Cash and bank balances 35  58,075  25,678  55,910  7,173 

 4,324,619  4,407,255  5,732,620  5,764,726 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts 35  933,739  1,329,471  896,042  1,268,845 

Trade creditors  837,855  434,936  459,023  560,197 

Accruals and other creditors 25  1,500,854  1,121,537  858,576  574,211 

deposit for shares 29  -  10,030  -  9,030 

due to related companies 24  755  12,319  -  - 

Short term loan 43  -  50,000  -  - 

Taxation 12  393,134  356,687  369,348  313,848 

 3,666,337  3,314,980  2,582,989  2,726,131 

NET CURRENT ASSETS  658,282  1,092,275  3,149,631  3,038,595 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,037,031  5,177,551  6,857,538  7,381,752 

NON CURRENT LIABILITY

deferred taxation 27  (25,816)  (25,817)  (25,816)  (63)

 4,011,215  5,151,734  6,831,722  7,381,689 

CAPITAL AND RESERvE

Share capital 28  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030 

Share premium 30  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750 

Fixed assets revaluation reserve 31  1,222,297  1,878,283  1,222,296  1,063,702 

Capital reserve 19  (329,252)  (253,090)  -  - 

Goodwill  -  -  (52,823)  - 

Revenue reserve 32  (5,017,368)  (4,548,443)  (2,144,531)  (1,488,793)

equity attributable to owners of the Company  3,682,457  4,883,530  6,831,722  7,381,689 

non-controlling interests 33  328,758  268,204  -  - 

TOTAL EqUITY  4,011,215  5,151,734  6,831,722  7,381,689 
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Consolidated Statement  
of Cash Flows
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

notes

GRoUP CoMPAnY

    2011
   n’000

   2010
   n’000

2011 
n’000

2010 
n’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers  1,838,834  893,062  1,348,819  1,083,727 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (1,608,400)  (1,456,789)  (975,182)  (1,437,466)

Value added tax (net)  (82,060)  (21,226)  (82,060)  (29,425)

 148,374  (584,953)  291,577  (383,164)

Income tax paid 12  (2,135)  (17,269)  -  (10,214)

net cash provided by operating activities 34  146,239  (602,222)  291,577  (393,378)

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  711,006  146,341  711,006  1,300 

Purchase of fixed assets 13  (26,597)  (167,018)  (239,317)  (94,475)

Purchase of intangible assets  (108,845)  (115,231)

Purchase of investment  (17,466)  (17,466)

Interest received  2  207  2  2 

Cash received from sale of investments 17  -  125,000  -  125,000 

net cash provided by investing activities  558,100  104,530  338,994  31,827 

Cash flows from financing activities

long term loan 43  -  50,000  -  - 

Term loan repayment  (50,000)

Interest paid  (226,210)  (275,588)  (209,031)  (273,039)

net cash provided by financing activities  (276,210)  (225,588)  (209,031)  (273,039)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

 428,129  (723,280)  421,540  (634,590)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 

of the year  (1,303,793)  (580,513)  (1,261,672)  (627,082)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
year

35  (875,664)  (1,303,793)  (840,132)  (1,261,672)

The accounting policies on pages 3 to 5 and the explanatory notes on pages 9 to 20 form part of these financial state-
ments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

1 ThE COMPaNY

2 lEGal FORM

The Company was incorporated in Nigeria as a private limited liability company on 10 September 1985 
and commenced operations on 10 October 1985. It became a public limited company on 4 September 
2008 and was listed on the floor of  the Nigerian Stock Exchange on 8 September 2008. 

3 PRINCIPal aCTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries offer complete end to end solution to small and large projects in the 
areas of identity management, payments, collection and transactional systems, as well as providing 
digital platform and ICT trainings.

4 GOING CONCERN CONSIDERaTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries have an accumulated loss of N5.02 billion as at 31 December 2011 
(2010: N4.55 billion), and negative cash flows of N0.9 billion for the year then ended (2010: N1.3 bil-
lion). The financial statements have, however, been prepared on a going concern basis as subsequent 
to the balance sheet date, the Company and its subsidiaries have won contracts that are expected to 
generate positive cash flows and profitability.

               GROUP                 COMPANY

2011
N’000

2010
N’000

2011
N’000

2010
N’000

5 TURNOVER

Identity Management & Solutions  700,316  28,053  700,316  237,667 

Payments, Collections & Transactional 
System

 484,257  1,056,195  15,955  21,492 

Digital Platform & ICT Training  593,164  400,667  593,164  532,597 

 1,777,737  1,484,915  1,309,435  791,756 

6(a) SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has three main business 
segments: 

- Identity Management & Solutions

- Payments, Collections & Transactional 
System

- Digital Platform & ICT Training

Revenue and cost reported are directly 
related to the segment.

(b) IDENTITY MaNaGEMENT & SOlUTIONS

Revenue  700,316  28,053  700,316  237,667 

Cost of sales  (520,675)  (19,661)  (520,675)  (165,994)

Gross profit  179,641  8,392  179,641  71,673 

(c) PaYMENTS, COllECTIONS & TRaNS-
aCTIONal SYSTEM

Revenue  484,257  1,056,195  15,955  21,492 

Cost of sales  (327,227)  (686,736)  (20,691)  (14,786)

Gross profit / (loss)  157,030  369,459  (4,736)  6,706 
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GROUP COMPANY

2011
N’000

2010
N’000

2011
N’000

2010
N’000

(d) DIGITal PlaTFORM & ICT 
TRaINING

Revenue  593,164  400,667  593,164  532,597 

Cost of sales  (231,553)  (258,285)  (317,530)  (317,530)

Gross profit  361,611  142,382  275,634  215,067 

Identity Manage-
ment & Solutions

Payments, 
Collections & 
Transactional 

System
Chams Access 

Limited
Digital Platform & 

ICT Training Total

7 SEGMENT BalaNCE ShEET     N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

GROUP

Fixed assets (Net book value) 2,099,056 449,798 449,798 2,998,652 

Long term investments 100,000 26,709  -  126,709 

Intangible assets 128,185 16,023 16,023 160,231 

Investment projects 17,466 67,482 8,209 93,157 

Deferred taxation (18,071) (3,872) (3,872) (25,815)

Current assets 2,133,904 1,095,357 1,095,357 4,324,618 

Current liabilities (1,750,355) (957,991) (957,991) (3,666,337)

Net assets  2,710,185  693,506  607,524  4,011,215 

CompanY

Fixed assets (Net book value)  990,737  37,386  841,192  1,869,315 

Long term investments  864,008  32,604  733,592  1,630,204 

Investment projects  49,373  1,863  41,921  93,157 

Deferred taxation (13,683) (516) (11,617) (25,816)

Current assets 3,038,289 114,652 2,579,679 5,732,620 

Current liabilities (1,381,215) (51,139) (1,150,635) (2,582,989)

Intangible assets 61,072 2,305 51,854 115,231 

Net assets 3,608,581 137,155 3,085,986 6,831,722 

GROUP COMPANY

            2011          2010         2011        2010

8 OThER OPERaTING INCOME            N’000         N’000         N’000      N’000

Fee income  85,251  24,945  -  21,492 

Rental Income  47,652  8,446  47,652  29,558 

Miscellaneous income  2,966  2,966  - 

Profit from disposal of investments  -  225,000  -  225,000 

Profit from disposal of assets  342,365  760  342,365  760 

 478,234  259,151  392,983  276,810 

Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1
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GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011
n’000

2010
n’000

2011
n’000

2010
n’000

9 loss on ordinary activities before taxation and extraordi-
nary item

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

directors’ emoluments  7,799  24,236  -  8,592 

Auditors’ remuneration  15,000  21,020  7,000  15,000 

depreciation  487,004  695,882  340,750  334,717 

exchange loss  -  159  -  159 

Profit on disposal of assets  (342,365)  (760)  (342,365)  (760)

10 exceptional item

This represents provision for diminution in value of 
investments (note 16)

 -  5,616  -  380,706 

11 extraordinary item

This represents profit from disposal of dataCentre by 
Chams Plc to Chams Access limited. 

 -  -  -  - 

This represents amortisation of the pre-operational cost 
of Chams Switch limited.

 -  409,669  -  - 

12(a) Taxation

Profit and loss account 

Income tax  386,582  59,343  36,054  36,762 

education tax  -  -  -  - 

Capital gains tax  -  63  -  63 

deferred tax (note 27)  -  (484,116)  -  (475,817)

Per profit and loss account  386,582  (424,710)  36,054  (438,992)

Balance sheet

Balance as at 1 January  356,687  314,613  313,848  287,300 

Addition from Supercard liability taken over  -  -  19,446  - 

Charge/(Writeback) for the year  38,582  (424,710)  36,054  (438,992)

deferred tax (note 27)  -  484,053  -  475,754 

 395,269  373,956  369,348  324,062 

Payment during the year  (2,135)  (17,269)  -  (10,214)

Per balance sheet  393,134  356,687  369,348  313,848 

(b) The charge for taxation in these financial statements is based on the provisions of the Companies Income Tax Act, CAP 
C21, lFn 2004 (as amended). The charge for education tax is based on the provisions of the education Tax Act, CAP 
e4, lFn 2004. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1
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13 PROPERTY, PlaNT aND EQUIPMENT

(a) GROUP         Land Buildings Plant and 
machinery

Motor 
vehicles

Equip-
ment

IT/Soft-
ware

Furniture 
and fit-

tings 

Total

Cost/valuation N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

At 1 January  402,361 1,643,205 1,116,510  200,846 1,180,635  508,113  506,675 5,558,345 

Additions  11,400  -  -  -  12,334  1,448  1,415  26,597 

Reclassification  -  1,407  -  -  -  -  (1,407)  - 

Assets written off  (6,300)  -  -  (11,100)  (690)  -  -  (18,090)

Disposals  -  (386,292)  (4,900)  -  -  -  -  (391,192)

Transfer to intangible assets  -  -  -  -  -  (120,640)  -  (120,640)

At 31 December  407,461 1,258,320 1,111,610  189,746 1,192,279  388,921  506,683 5,055,020 

Depreciation

At 1 January  -  116,758  450,666  113,811  611,416  227,910  182,377 1,702,938 

Charge for the year  -  36,974  20,035  45,355  230,578  81,042  73,020  487,004 

Asset written off  -  -  -  (6,941)  (517)  -  -  (7,458)

On adjustment  -  -  -  (83,813)  -  (83,813)

Impairment losses  -  -  24,984  -  -  -  -  24,984 

On disposal  -  (18,250)  (4,900)  -  -  -  -  (23,150)

Transfer to intangible assets  -  -  -  -  -  (44,137)  -  (44,137)

At 31 December  -  135,482  490,785  152,225  841,477  181,002  255,397 2,056,368 

Net book value

At 31 December 2011  407,461 1,122,838  620,825  37,521  350,802  207,919  251,286 2,998,652 

At 31 December 2010  402,361 1,526,447  665,844  87,035  569,219  280,203  324,298 3,855,407 

Leasehold land with a book value of N33.784 million was valued at N210 million by Messrs Jide Taiwo & Co (Estate Surveyors 
& Valuers), independent valuers not connected with the Company, on the basis of open market value on 16 June 2009. Also 
Datacenter with book value N244 million was valued at N900 million by Messrs Jide Taiwo & Co (Estate Surveyors & Valuers) 
on 31 December 2009.

Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1
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(b) COMPaNY

Land 
Land and 
building

Plant and 
machinery

Motor 
vehicles Equipment

IT/soft-
ware

Furniture 
and fit-

tings Total

Cost/valuation n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

At 1 January  135,924 1,643,206  89,337  113,368  917,343  47,398  240,888 3,187,464 

Additions/transfer  221,400  -  -  3,430  12,282  681  1,524  239,317 

Reclassification  -  1,407  -  -  -  -  (1,407)  - 

Adjustment  (6,300)  (6,300)

disposals  (386,292)  (4,900)  (391,192)

At 31 december  351,024 1,258,321  84,437  116,798  929,625  48,079  241,005 3,029,289 

depreciation

At 1 January  -  116,758  32,598  70,125  502,723  789  119,381  842,374 

Charge for the year  -  36,974  12,373  26,664  198,085  9,480  57,174  340,750 

on reclassification  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

on disposal  -  (18,250)  (4,900)  -  -  -  -  (23,150)

At 31 december  -  135,482  40,071  96,789  700,808  10,269  176,555 1,159,974 

net book value

At 31 december 2011  351,024 1,122,839  44,366  20,009  228,817  37,810  64,450 1,869,315 

At 31 december 2010  135,924 1,526,448  56,739  43,243  414,620  46,609  121,507 2,345,090 

The Company’s building located at no. 8 louis Solomon Close was revalued and reported on 10 december 2007 by Messrs Jide 
Taiwo & Co (estate Surveyors and Valuers), independent valuers not connected with the Company, on the basis of open market 
value. This was adjusted in the financial statements.

14 INTaNGIBlE aSSETS

GRoUP CoMPAnY

Cost/valuation n’000 n’000

At 1 January  -  - 

Additions  150,000  - 

Transfers of intangible assests  169,485  169,485 

At 31 december  319,485  169,485 

depreciation

At 1 January  -  - 

Charge for the year  25,118  10,118 

Transfer of amortisation Charge  44,136  44,136 

Prior year adjustment  90,000 

At 31 december  159,254  54,254 

net book value

At 31 december 2011  160,231  115,231 

At 31 december 2010  -  - 

Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

Intangible assets represent the value of nCC licence acquired from SmartCity by Card Center nigeria limited  and Software development 
Cost acquired from Supercard limited by Chams Plc recognised in the book during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

Equity 
holding

%

GRoUP CoMPAnY

         2011
n’000

     2010
      n’000

      2011
        n’000

         2010
        n’000

15 lONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

(a) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIaRIES

Card Centre nigeria limited 99.07  -  -  1,189,112  1,189,112 

Supercard nigeria limited 81.25  -  -  -  264,702 

Chams Access limited 68.37  -  -  810,600  810,600 

Chams Mobile limited  100.00  26,709  26,709  26,709  26,709 

Chams Switch limited 84.34  -  -  598,951  598,952 

 26,709  26,709  2,625,372  2,890,075 

Chams Mobile was not consolidated because it is still in its project form, and is not significant.

(b) INVESTMENT IN aSSOCIaTE

Paymaster nigeria limited  263,471  263,471  263,471  263,471 

(c) INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED ENTITIES

Unitec nigeria limited -  -  1,500  1,500  1,500 

Joint Komputer Kompany limited  100,000  100,000  100,000  100,000 

 100,000  101,500  101,500  101,500 

Total investment  390,180  391,680  2,990,343  3,255,046 

Provision for diminution in value 

- of Unitec nigeria limited  -  (1,500)  (1,500)  (1,500)

- of subsidiaries and associate (note 15d)  (263,471)  (263,471)  (1,358,639)  (1,358,639)

 126,709  126,709  1,630,204  1,894,907 

(d) PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION IN ValUE OF 

subsidiaries and associate

Card Centre nigeria limited  -  -  981,798  981,798 

Chams Access limited  -  -  113,370  113,370 

Paymaster nigeria limited  263,471  263,471  263,471  263,471 

 263,471  263,471  1,358,639  1,358,639 

16 MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENT

At 1 January  126,709  132,325  1,894,907  2,653,263 

Additions during the year  -  -  -  - 

disposal during the year  -  -  -  (375,000)

Adjustments  -  -  -  (2,650)

Movement in provision for diminution  (5,616)  (264,703)  (380,706)

At 31 december  126,709  126,709  1,630,204  1,894,907 

The Company bought over the shares of the non-controlling interest in Supercard nigeria limited to maintain a 100% 

controlling interest. It also subsequently merged the operations of the Company by taking over its assets and liabilities. 

The goodwill arising on acquisition has been included in these financial statements. 
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GROUP COMPANY

2011 2010 2011 2010

17 DISPOSal OF INVESTMENT N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Amount realised from disposal  -  600,000  -  600,000 

Cost of investment  -  (475,000)  -  (475,000)

Profit from sale of investment  -  125,000  -  125,000 

On 31 March 2010, the Board of Directors approved a sale of 750 miilion units (31.63%) of Chams Access Limited 
ordinary shares of 50k each at 80k each to Computermart Nigeria Limited. As at the year end, N475 million (Note 
11.1) of this consideration was unpaid.

GROUP COMPANY

2011 2010 2011 2010

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

18 INVESTMENT PROJECTS

Chams Varsity  8,209  15,283  8,209  15,283 

Chams.Net  61,192  81,587  61,192  81,587 

Chams Wallet  6,290  6,290  6,290  6,290 

NIMC  17,466  -  17,466  - 

 93,157  103,160  93,157  103,160 

Investment projects represent expenses incurred on behalf of Chams Varsity, Chams.Net and Chams Wallet divi-
sions, and will be converted to shares when these divisions become subsidiaries.

GROUP COMPANY

2011 2010 2011 2010

19 CaPITal RESERVE N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Opening balance  253,090  (349,859)  -  - 

Goodwill on consolidation  76,162  602,949  -  - 

Closing balance  329,252  253,090  -  - 

20 STOCKS

Terminals and consumables  1,069,779  1,232,299  167,580  193,467 

Work in progress  10,000  77,648  10,000  77,648 

 1,079,779  1,309,947  177,580  271,115 

21(a) TRaDE DEBTORS

Trade debtors  1,862,929  1,654,717  1,374,166  1,217,591 

Provision for doubtful debts (Note 21(b))  (347,213)  (115,073)  (262,480)  (115,073)

 1,515,716  1,539,644  1,111,686  1,102,518 

(b) PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUl DEBTS

At 1 January  115,073  45,482  115,073  45,482 

Supercard debtors provision  24,304  -  24,304  (14,825)

Bad debt recovered  (2,484)  (14,825)  (2,484)  - 

Provision for the year  210,320  84,416  125,587  84,416 

At 31 December  347,213  115,073  262,480  115,073 

Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

22(a) PREPaYMENTS aND OThER DEBTORS

Prepayments  166,970  399,968  164,652  358,788 

other debtors (note 22(b))  1,066,478  803,049  2,168,900  2,127,884 

director’s current account  206,832  105,911  206,832  105,911 

 1,440,280  1,308,928  2,540,384  2,592,583 

(b) OThER DEBTORS

Term loan - Chams Access (note 22(c))  -  -  532,819  532,819 

deposit for shares  -  -  1,000,000  1,000,000 

Computermart nig. limited - sale of investment  475,000  475,000  475,000  475,000 

Service charges  -  92,091  -  12,289 

Calls in arrears  20,621  17,670  20,621  17,670 

Withholding tax  78,318  30,856  37,825  30,856 

Cash advance  1,434  -  -  - 

deposit for petrocard  207  -  207  - 

PPM-Wiliams  67  -  67  - 

Intermac Consulting  4,812  -  4,812  - 

Staff debtors  166,135  244,607  154,156  116,425 

Universal service provision fund  16,109  -  -  - 

deposit for assets  3,150  -  3,150  - 

Input VAT  20,245  -  -  - 

due from related Company  319,203  -  -  - 

other debit balance  16,231  -  16,231  - 

Miscellaneous  22,742  -  1,808  - 

Provision for doubtful debts  - staff debtors  (57,175)  (57,175)  (57,175)  (57,175)

Call in arrears written off  (20,621)  -  (20,621)  - 

 1,066,478  803,049  2,168,900  2,127,884 

(c) Term loan represents loan given to Chams Access limited at an interest-free rate  effective from 31st december 2009.

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

23 DUE FROM RElaTED COMPaNIES

Chams Plc  -  - 

Paymaster nigeria limited  230,769  216,768  230,769  216,768 

Card Centre nigeria limited  -  -  1,428,747  1,390,082 

Supercard nigeria limited  -  -  2,967  88,375 

Chams Switch limited  -  -  130,892  93,918 

Chams Mobile limited  -  6,068  25,166  6,068 

Chams Access limited  -  23,152  (3,874)

Chams Consortium  -  367  - 

Smart City limited  -  222  5,000  - 

 230,769  223,058  1,847,060  1,791,337 

24 DUE TO RElaTED COMPaNIES

Paymaster nigeria limited  755  6,819  -  - 

Smart City limited  -  5,500  -  - 

 755  12,319  -  - 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

25(a) aCCRUalS aND OThER CREDITORS

Rent received in advance  -  3,168  -  3,168 

VAT payable  186,099  92,385  88,728  9,585 

Staff pension (Note 25(b))  67,831  81,804  20,313  25,239 

Withholding tax  61,257  57,813  61,257  56,786 

Accrued expenses  622,408  544,847  291,126  193,178 

Directors’ current account  56,197  6,897  -  - 

Sundry creditors  -  -  56,973 

Due to other related Company  546  -  -  - 

Other credit balances  450,793  334,599  284,455  286,255 

Advances  55,553  -  55,554  - 

Information Technology Development Levy  170  24  170  - 

 1,500,854  1,121,537  858,576  574,211 

(b) STaFF PENSION

At 1 January  60,630  40,538  25,239  11,827 

Transfer from Supercard  8,896  -  8,896  - 

Deductions in the year  30,528  50,303  18,401  22,719 

Remittance  (32,223)  (9,037)  (32,223)  (9,307)

At 31 December  67,831  81,804  20,313  25,239 

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

26 DIVIDEND PaYaBlE

Balance at 1 January  -  -  -  - 

dividend declared (note 32)  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

Payment during the year  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 december  -  -  -  - 

27 DEFERRED TaxaTION

Balance at 1 January  192,818  (317,052)  192,818  (282,999)

deferred tax from Supercard taken over  (8,131)  -  (8,131)

Writeback / (charge) for the year (note 12)  -  484,116  -  475,817 

Balance at 31 december  184,687  167,064  184,687  192,818 

CaPITal GaINS Tax

Balance at 1 January  (192,881)  (192,818)  (192,881)  (192,818)

Charge for the year (note 15)  (17,622)  (63)  (17,622)  (63)

Balance at 31 december  (210,503)  (192,881)  (210,503)  (192,881)

Per balance sheet  (25,816)  (25,817)  (25,816)  (63)

The group tax computation resulted in a deferred tax asset of n 757.7 million (2010: n495.4 million).This has 
not been adjusted for in these consolidated financial statements as the asset may not be recoverable in the 
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

28 ShaRE CaPITal n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

aUThORISED:

10 billion ordinary shares of 50 kobo each  5,000,000  5,000,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

ISSUED aND FUllY PaID:

4,696,060,000 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030 

Balance at 1 January  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030 

Balance at 31 december  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030 

29 DEPOSIT FOR ShaRES

Balance at 31 december  -  10,030  -  9,030 

30 ShaRE PREMIUM

Balance at 1 January  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750 

Share issue expenses  -  -  -  - 

Adjustment from share capital  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 december  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750 

31 FIxED aSSETS REValUaTION RESERVE

Balance at 1 January  1,878,283  1,878,283  1,063,702  1,063,702 

Prior year adjustment  (655,986)  -  -  - 

Addition  -  -  -  - 

Write back  -  -  158,594  - 

Supercard asset revaluation reserve acquired  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 december  1,222,297  1,878,283  1,222,296  1,063,702 

32 REVENUE RESERVE

Balance at 1 January  (4,548,443)  (2,716,025)  (1,488,793)  (118,495)

Prior year adjustments:  632,637  -  -  - 

Cost of sales understated  -  (222,598)  -  (222,598)

opening balance as reinstated  (3,915,806)  (2,938,623)  (1,488,793)  (341,093)

Post acquisition reserve of Supercard  -  (23,066)  - 

dividend declared  -  -  -  - 

loss for the year  (1,101,562)  (1,609,820)  (632,672)  (1,147,700)

Balance at 31 december  (5,017,368)  (4,548,443)  (2,144,531)  (1,488,793)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

2011 2010 2011 2010

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

33 NON-CONTROllING INTERESTS

Share capital 601,595  435,358  -  - 

Share premium 24,710  14,924  -  - 

Revenue reserves (297,547)  (182,078)  -  - 

At 31 december 328,758  268,204  -  - 

34 RECONCIlIaTION OF NET lOSS TO NET CaSh PROVIDED BY OPERaTING aCTIVITIES

loss after taxation (1,236,982) (1,791,898) (632,672) (1,147,700)

aDJUSTMENT TO RECONCIlE NET lOSS TO NET CaSh PROVIDED BY OPERaTING aCTIVITIES:

Profit on sale of investments  - (225,000) (342,365) (225,000)

loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets (342,365) 1,953  - (760)

Interest payable 226,210 275,588 209,031 273,039 

non-controlling interests 135,420 182,078  -  - 

depreciation 487,004 695,882 340,750 334,717 

Amortisation 52,587 37,587 

Interest received (2) (207) (2) (2)

Provision for impairment losses 24,984 

Adjustment in investment  -  -  - 2,650 

Provision for diminution in value of investments  -  5,616 374,748 380,706 

Assets written off 9,632 234,462 4,386  - 

Acquisition of subsidiaries  -  - (264,702)  - 

Call in  arrears written off 20,621 20,621 

ChaNGES IN aSSETS aND lIaBIlITIES:

decrease in investment projects  -  18,982 10,003 18,982 

(Increase)/decrease in intangible (108,845)  - 115,231  - 

decrease in stock 230,168 (333,990) 93,535 62,834 

decrease/(increase) in trade debtors 23,928 (250,244) (9,168) (196,690)

(Increase)/decrease in other debtors (131,352) 1,194,840 52,199 391,140 

Increase in amount due from related companies (7,711) (2,094) (55,723) (178,363)

Increase /(decrease) in trade creditors 402,919  236,678 (101,174) 306,533 

Increase /(decrease) in other creditors and accruals 379,317  641,787 284,365 256,340 

decrease in deposit for shares -9,030  - (9,030) (475,754)

decrease in deferred tax liability  - (484,053) 25,753  - 

Goodwill/Capital reserve on consolidation (76,162) (602,949)  -  - 

Increase /(decrease) in tax payable  36,447 42,074 55,500 26,548 

Increase /(decrease) in non-controlling interests  60,554 19,557  -  - 

net movement in subsidiary acquired  -  - 82,704  - 

Prior year adjustments (19,539) (222,598)  - (222,598)

Increase in amount due to related companies (11,564) (238,686)  -  - 

Total adjustments 1,383,221 1,189,676 924,249 754,322 

net cash provided by operating activities 146,239 (602,222) 291,577 (393,378)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

GRoUP CoMPAnY

         2011 2010          2011 2010

         n’000 n’000          n’000 n’000

35 CaSh aND CaSh EQUIValENTS

Bank and cash balances  58,075  25,678  55,910  7,173 

Bank overdrafts  (933,739)  (1,329,471)  (896,042)  (1,268,845)

 (875,664)  (1,303,793)  (840,132)  (1,261,672)

36(a) Information regarding directors and employees

(b) aNalYSIS OF ThE COMPaNY’S aVERaGE WEEKlY NUMBER OF EMPlOYEES WERE:

Management staff  26  30  15  15 

Senior staff  100  130  64  72 

Junior staff  54  79  14  16 

 180  239  93  103 

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

STaFF COSTS RElaTING TO ThE aBOVE WERE:

Wages and salaries  482,662  636,332  255,819  359,125 

Pension contribution  30,528  50,303  18,401  22,719 

 513,190  686,635  274,220  381,844 

(c) EMOlUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF ThE COMPaNY WERE -

Fee:

Chairman  3,110  3,110  1,350  1,350 

other directors  21,126  21,126  7,242  7,242 

 24,236  24,236  8,592  8,592 

(d) FEES  (ExClUDING PENSIONS 

contributions) include amounts paid to

The Chairman  1,460  1,460  1,350  1,350 

The highest paid director  1,460  1,460  1,350  1,350 

The table below shows the number of directors and employees of the Group and Company whose emoluments during 
the year (excluding pension contributions) were within the bands stated.

e M o l U M e n T S e M P l o Y e e S

GRoUP CoMPAnY

n 2011 2010 2011 2010 

Up to  -  1  -  - 

 300,001  24  31  -  4 

 500,001  20  29  4  9 

 700,001  15  19  10  6 

 900,001  17  24  1  6 

 1,100,001  104  135  78  78 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 1

37 (lOSSES)/ EaRNINGS PER ShaRE

The calculation of (losses) / earnings per share is based on the (loss) / profit after taxation and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares issued and fully paid during the financial year.

38 GUaRaNTEES aND OThER FINaNCIal COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments authorised by the directors at 31 december, 2011 (2010 - nil).

Contingent liabilities

The directors are of the opinion that there were no contingent liabilities in respect of actions against the company, ac-
cordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements as at 31 december 2011 (2010 - nil).

39 MaJOR SUPPlIERS

The Company’s major supplier is data Card Corporation.

40 RElaTED PaRTY TRaNSaCTIONS

Related party transactions arose from transfer of fixed assets, rents due and payments to suppliers.  As at 31 december 
2011 balances due from and to related Companies were as stated in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial 
statements respectively.

41 COMPaRaTIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated in order to provide more meaningful comparison. 

42 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW

In the opinion of the directors, there were no significant post balance sheet events that could have material effect on 
the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 december 2011 and on the loss for the year ended on 
that date, which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

43 ShORT TERM lOaN

This is a 90 day contract finance facility of n50 million  obtained from WeMA Bank Plc for the execution of a unique 
biometrics identity management system for national open University of nigeria. It carries an interest rate of 19% per 
annum effective from the drawdown date of 12 november 2010.
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GRoUP CoMPAnY

          2011       2010       2011          2010

         n’000 %        n’000 %      n’000 %          n’000 %

Sales of products and services  1,484,915  1,484,915  1,309,435  791,756 

other income  259,151  259,151  392,982  276,810 

 1,744,066  1,744,066  1,702,417  1,068,566 

Bought in materials and services:-

-  Imported  176,825  (393,580)  (299,262)  (347,246)

-  local  (1,908,989)  (1,908,989)  (1,630,538)  (1,318,412)

Value added /(eroded)  11,902  (100)  (558,503)  (100)  (227,383)  (100)  (597,092)  (100)

Applied as follows:

To pay employees:

employees’ wages, salaries and other 
benefits

 513,190  4,312  686,635  123  274,220  (121)  381,844  64 

To pay Government:

Income tax  38,582  324  59,343  11  36,054  (16)  36,762  6 

Capital gains tax  -  -  63  -  -  -  63  - 

To pay providers of capital:

Interest payable and similar charges  210,107  1,765  275,588  49  209,031  (92)  273,039  46 

To provide for replacement of assets 
and growth:

-  depreciation  487,005  4,092  695,882  125  340,750  (150)  334,717  56 

-  deferred tax  -  -  (484,116)  (87)  -  -  (475,817)  (80)

-  Profit and loss account  (1,236,982) (10,393)  (1,791,898) (321)  (632,672)  278  (1,147,700)  (192)

 11,902  100  (558,503)  (100)  227,383  (100)  (597,092)  (100)

Value added represents the additional wealth which the Company and its subsidiaries have been able to create by their own and their 
employees’ efforts. This statement shows the allocation of that wealth among all stakeholders and amount retained for the future crea-
tion of more wealth.

Consolidated Statement of Value 
Added
F O R  T h E  Y E a R  E N D E D  3 1  D E C E M B E R  2 0 1 0
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Consolidated Financial Summary
3 1  D E C E M B E R

GRoUP  CoMPAnY 

2011 2010 2009 2008 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000 n’000

aSSETS/(lIaBIlITIES)

Fixed assets  2,998,652  3,855,407  4,767,027  3,725,250  1,869,315  2,345,090  2,585,872  3,176,574  1,850,363 

Intangible assets  160,231  -  -  -  115,231  -  -  -  - 

long term investments  126,709  126,709  132,325  1,566,959  1,630,204  1,894,907  2,653,263  3,130,174  568,509 

Investment projects  93,157  103,160  122,142  -  93,157  103,160  122,142  -  - 

Goodwill  -  -  -  587,950  -  -  -  -  - 

net current assets  658,282  1,092,275  2,680,919  3,743,855  3,149,631  3,038,595  3,866,527  4,083,893  12,419 

Provision for liabilities and charges  (25,816)  (25,817)  (509,870)  (516,698)  (25,816)  (63)  (475,817)  (511,359)  (247,078)

 4,011,215  5,151,734  7,192,543  9,107,316  6,831,722  7,381,689  8,751,987  9,879,282  2,184,213 

CaPITal aND RESERVES

Share capital  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,530  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,030  2,348,530  861,030 

Share premium  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,462,603  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,458,750  5,462,603  172,478 

Fixed assets revaluation reserve  1,222,297  1,878,283  1,878,283  1,063,702  1,222,296  1,063,702  1,063,702  1,063,702  1,063,702 

Revenue reserve (5,017,368) (4,548,443) (2,716,025)  191,768 (2,144,531) (1,488,793)  (118,495)  1,004,447  87,003 

Capital reserve  (329,252)  (253,090)  349,859  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Goodwill  -  -  -  587,950  (52,823)  -  -  -  - 

non-controlling interests  328,758  268,204  (126,354)  40,713  -  -  -  -  - 

Total equity  4,011,215  5,151,734  7,192,543  9,695,266  6,831,722  7,381,689  8,751,987  9,879,282  2,184,213 

TURNOVER aND PROFIT

Turnover  1,777,737  1,484,915  988,615  2,400,342  1,309,435  791,756  319,819  1,913,108  4,467,186 

(loss)/profit before taxation

and extraordinary item (1,198,400) (1,801,323) (2,474,699) 835,706  (596,618) (1,205,986)  (641,275)  783,025  1,046,818 

Taxation  (38,582)  (424,710)  140,540  642,684 -36,054  (438,992)  119,427  627,397  247,502 

extraordinary item  -  (409,669)  -  -  -  -  745,990  847,859  - 

(loss)/profit after taxation

and extraordinary item (1,236,982) (1,791,898) (2,873,094)  193,022  (632,672) (1,147,700)  (992,645)  1,003,497  799,316 

Attributable to:

owners of the Company (1,101,562) (1,609,820) (2,591,029)  190,818  (632,672) (1,147,700)  (992,645)  1,003,497  799,316 

non controlling interest  (135,420)  (182,078)  (282,065)  2,204  -  -  -  -  - 

PER ShaRE DaTa (KOBO):

(losses) / earnings per share

Basic  (26)  (34)  (61)  4  (13)  (24)  (37)  39  46 

earnings per share

diluted  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  21  46 

net assets per share  85  110  153  206  34  157  186  210  127 

(loss)/earnings per share is based on (loss) / profit after taxation but before extraordinary item and the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and 
fully paid at the end of each financial year.

net assets per share is calculated based on the net assets and the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end of each financial year.
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Products and Services

C h a M S C I T Y 

As a business unit, ChamsCity is positioned as a service provider. 
It employs technology as an enabling platform for improved ef-
ficiency in business. With over 2000 computer systems and 3 
centers in lagos, Port-Harcourt and Abuja, ChamsCity has fa-
cilitated a number of international IT conferences, professional 
examinations; computer based testing, e-learning and training. 
Corporate organizations have also latched on its platform to en-
hance their recruitment and testing processes.

Following the merger and acquisition of Supercard limited (a 
subsidiary of Chams Plc) with Chams PlC, ChamsCity acquired 
the capacity and resources for Identity management offerings 
and has continued to manage clients and handle related pro-
jects.

Within the year, ChamsCity facilitated a number of computer 
based testing and training for corporate multinationals and gov-
ernment institutions. It also has handled biometric staff audit 
and verification for a number of states and government parast-
als.  Some of its major clients are nigerian Airforce (nAF), nigeri-
an Customs Service, osun State,  Anambra State, nCC, Amnesty, 
Anambra State, BPe, PHCn, nIMC, nCS,  etc.

C h a M S Va R S I T Y 

Set up as a strategic business unit within Chams PlC to deliver 
quality ICT and industry specific training to corporate organisa-
tions, government institutions and individuals. 

ChamsVarsity is the ideal ICT training organization with the re-
quired expertise to handle professional training with object-ori-
ented delivery. It handles and delivers training solutions to both 
the corporate citizenry and individuals in diverse IT career and 
executive courses. 

ChamsVarsity also offers executive course packages like Prepara-
tion for Project Management (PMP), ITIl Foundation and Prince 
2 training as well as the platform for writing such examinations. 
Also, since training is a skills acquisition affair that is a penulti-
mate requirement for personal development and a solid career 
path, ChamsVarsity has invested heavily in the provision of the 
right quality of trainers as well as infrastructure for the utmost 
conducive learning.

In the period under review, ChamsVarsity expanded its frontiers 
with the set up of on-campus training centers at the lagos State 
University and obafemi Awolowo University (in progress).

To increase its offerings and enhance the quality of service deliv-
ery to clients, ChamsVarsity is in process of concluding its part-
nership deals with Blackboard/eiffel Corp to facilitate e-learning. 

In serving the public sector, ChamsVarsity successfully set up 
an e-library centre for FRSC and also handles their requisite ICT 
training to improve process and job efficiency.    

N a I R a . C O M 

naira.com focuses online infrastructure development and ser-
vice provision for businesses or institutions that seek online pres-
ence and or seek to utilize ICT as an enabling tool for simplifying 
its processes. naira.com provides a safe and secure environment 
for carrying out online payments using recognized local and in-
ternational debit/credit cards.

2011 saw a number of activities for naira.com from the set up 
of the web portal and e-voting system for the Chartered Institute 
of Personnel Management; also for the nigerian Institute of Ar-
chitects as well as Institute of Chartered Accountants of nigeria 
(ICAn). Also handled portal development for nigeria Reinsur-
ance; IBA SeeRIl Conference registration and payment; Young 
lawyers’ Conference portal development

T E R M I N a l S  a N D  P R I N T E R S 

The ripple effect of the CBn cashlite policy has positively im-
pacted on business for the terminals and printers unit. Banks 
today have the need to promptly provide cards to their clients 
to enable them carry out transactions out of the bank locations 
and even online. 

As exclusive distributors of dataCard printers, in nigeria, the ter-
minals and printers unit have sold, installed and are presently 
servicing a sizeable number of datacard printers

The unit’s strategic focus is on ensuring a pervasive use of data-
card printers across financial, educational, health institutions in 
nigeria and its focused on the development of Marketing Chan-
nels - Webshop, outlet Stores, Channel Partners, Service Centres 
and office Front Stores to achieve this objective.

one of the major highlights for the year was the Head of Service 
contract award for Access Control through the nIMC. Also the 
completion of the Valucard financial Instant Issuance solution 
was another major high point in the year. others clients include 
First Bank of nigeria Plc, Zenith Bank PlC, epayplus, Mainstreet 
Bank PlC, Integrated Healthcare, ASCon eTC
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Subsidiaries
C a R D C E N T R E  l I M I T E D
With the fast paced changing demands of customers and the econo-
my, CardCentre recently upgraded their current production machines 
to produce multi pins card in line with market demand and successfully 
deployed two Mx 6000 printers to be used for the personalization of 
VISA chip cards. CardCentre in partnership with Unified Payment Sys-
tems limited (Formerly ValuCard) has supplied financial cards. other 
corporate bodies subscribing to their services include Insurance Compa-
nies, Telecommunication companies and other corporate organisations. 

Some of the major projects carried out in the year in-
clude ; Personalization of financial cards at ValuCard , 
issuance of IGR Cards for Anambra, supply of Ruim 
Cards to Intercellular; supply of Smart Id Cards to the 
nigerian Customs. 

C h a M S  a C C E S S
Consequent upon the policy summersault by the Central Bank of ni-
geria on ATM deployment by independent Automated Teller Machine 
Consortium services, banks are now acquiring ATMs for themselves. 

In the light of this ChamsAccess business extended it 
frontiers to Ghana whilst prospecting local banks 
and other financial institutions here in nigeria. 
It has deployed ATMs to energy Bank in Ghana 
and is in partnership talks with a major nigeria bank 
with a wide network across the country. 

To further fortify their operational capacity, the company presently runs 
an end to end test of their ATMs through the nigeria Central Switch. 

Chams Access has recently expanded services which were being ren-
dered to nITdA national Information Technology development Agency 
in 2007 following recent update in the MoU to include the provision of 
outsourced management for eighty five (85) Rural Information Technol-
ogy Centres by the company.

C h a M S S W I T C h  l I M I T E D
ChamsSwitch has over the years developed core competence  in  pay-
ment and collection processing systems as well as transaction switching 
and processing. The switch offers flexible, safe and reliable switching 
solutions for transactions and operates an ACI Base 24 eps - a switch-
ing solution which is the recommended best by International standards 
and is currently used by international 
Banks, VISA and Mastercard.

Some of the landmark achievements 
are 

 y ChamsSwitch was the first switch to successfully test and connect 
to the nigerian national Central Switch and was recently awarded 
the right to deploy its revenue collection solution, PayCollect, to 
consolidate and collect all revenue in Anambra State aimed at in-

creasing the internally generated revenue by 100% within a year.

 y Towards ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of their services, 
ChamsSwitch engaged the services of Bankserv, the largest switch 
in South Africa which has been in operation for over 30 years, to 
refine its processes and procedures.

 y The switch till date has also developed diverse industry focused 
solutions that render valuable services to private and public sec-
tor organizations. These solutions include Paycollect, Multipay and 
Webpen which some sectors of the economy are presently in sub-
scription to these services.

Its project milestones for 2011 include 

 y Abia State IGR and collections  
 y Anambra State IGR 
 y nassarawa State PayCollect 
 y Connectivity to 5 banks, 
 y MultiPay live and in testing phase. Various Govt. & Corp. Custom-

ers in view
• Schools focus – oAU, UnAAB etc

PaY M a S T E R
PayMaster; is a CBn licensed PoS terminal solutions provider (PTSP) de-
ploying PoS terminals and innovative solutions on PoS terminals are 
the main thrust of the company. PayMaster is equipped with requisite 
manpower and skills for the deployment and provision of technical sup-
port for PoS terminals deployed across the country. It is one of the 
companies driving the cashlite lagos agenda of the CBn. 

In furtherance to the PTSP license issued 
PayMaster limited, CBn also approved and 
endorsed the Bitel terminal as one of the 4 brands of PoS acceptable 
for deployment for the Cashlite nigeria project. To bridge any technical 
gap  PayMaster is Partnership with Bitel and IVeRI for the development 
of additional value added offerings on the PoS while also providing 
technical competence and support.  

Also, the Bitel terminals were integrated the nigeria Interbank Settle-
ment System (nIBSS) to facilitate seamless transaction on the PoS. 

C h a M S M O B I l E  l I M I T E D 
ChamsMobile secured approval in principle from Central Bank to oper-
ate a mobile payment system in nigeria. It has thus far completed its 
pilot phase and gone through the different levels of audit by the apex 
bank to obtain an operating license. 

ChamsMobile offers secure mobile payment solution to the vast array 
of the unbanked in the rural and suburban communities.  Services avail-
able include cash-in and Cash-out, cash transfer, balance inquiry and 
mini account statement, phone credit top-up, utility payment etc. 

ChamsMobile is has commenced deployment of it mobile payment so-
lution to closed communities and is extending its reach gradually.
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 e - d I V I d e n d  M A n d A T e  F o R M

The Registrar,
First Registrars nig ltd
Plot 2 Abebe Village Road, Iganmu
P.M.B 12692 Marina lagos

only Clearing Banks are acceptable 

I/ We hereby request that from now on, all dividend warrant(s) due to me/our holding(s) in Chams Plc be paid directly to my/
our Bank named below:

SHAReHoldeR’S ACCoUnT nUMBeR  dATe (dd/MM/YYYY)  

                  

SURnAMe/ CoMPAnY’S nAMe

                        

oTHeR nAMeS (FoR IndIVIdUAl SHAReHoldeR)

                        

PReSenT PoSTAl AddReSS

                        

                        

CITY STATe

                        

eMAIl AddReSS

                        

MoBIle (GSM) PHone nUMBeR

                    

BAnK nAMe

                        

BRAnCH AddReSS

                        

BAnK ACCoUnT nUMBeR

                        

BRAnCH SoRT Code (VeRY IMPoRTAnT)

                        

SHAReHoldeR’S SIGnATURe oR THUMBPRInT SHAReHoldeR’S SIGnATURe oR THUMBPRInT 

AUTHoRISed SIGnATURe & STAMP oF BAnKeR
CoMPAnY SeAl/InCoRPoRATIon nUMBeR  
(CoRPoRATe SHAReHoldeR)

            

Chams PLC
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P R O X Y  F O R M

28th annual General Meeting to be held at Chams Plc, Plot 1288, ahmadu Bello Way, area 11, abuja on Wednesday 21st 

November 2012 at 11.00 am. 

I/We__________________________________________________________________________.being a member/members of CHAMS 

Plc hereby appoint _________________________________________________________________________________

 or failing him RT. Revd. (Prof.) A.d Akinde, or failing him Mr. demola Aladekomo, as my proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my 

behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on Wednesday, 21 november, 2012 and at any adjournment thereof. 

dated this_____________________________________________________.day of ________________________________2012 

Shareholder’s name ______________________________________________________________________________________________  

Shareholder’s Signature ___________________________________________________________________________________________

S/n ReSolUTIon FoR AGAInST

1 To receive the audited Financial Statement for the year ended december 31, 2011 and the Reports 

of the directors, Auditors and Audit Committee thereon

  

2    

3    

4    

Please indicate with an ‘x’ in the appropriate square how you wish your votes to be cast on the resolutions set above. Unless otherwise 

instructed, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion.

 

Before posting the above form please tear off this part and return it for admission to the meeting

A d M i S S i O n  C A R d

Please admit the Shareholder named on this Card or his duly appointed proxy to the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held 

on 21st november, 2011 at the Chams Multi Purpose Hall, Plot 1288, Ahmadu Bello Way, Area 11, Garki, Abuja.  

The admission card must be produced by the Proxy in order to gain entrance into the Annual General Meeting.  

 

  _______________________   ________________________   _______________________   ________________________

 nAMe oF SHAReHoldeR nAMe oF PRoxY SIGnATURe (SHAReHoldeR) nUMBeR oF SHAReS Held
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Corporate Directory 

h E a D  O F F I C E 

8 louis Solomon Close  
off Ahmadu Bello Way  
Victoria Island  
lagos

a B U J a  O F F I C E 

Plot 1288, Ahmadu Bello Way,  
Area 11, Garki,  
Abuja

O U T l E T S  -  C h a M S C I T Y 
C E N T R E S . 

Lagos 
2A Isaac John Street,  
GRA, Ikeja 

abuja 
Plot 66, First Avenue,  
off Shehu Shagari Road,  
Central Area,  
Abuja

abuja II
Area 3, Abuja 

Port HarCourt 
89, Stadium Road,  
Behind Fedex Building, Port-Harcourt, Rivers State

benIn  
34 Akpakpava Street,  
Benin City, 
edo State

S U B S I D I a R I E S 

ChamsMobile limited  
8 louis Solomon Close  
off Ahmadu Bello Way  
Victoria Island  
lagos

Chamsaccess limited  
8 louis Solomon Close  
off Ahmadu Bello Way  
Victoria Island  
lagos

ChamsSwitch limited  
Plot 1288, Ahmadu Bello Way  
Area 11, Garki,  
Abuja

CardCentre Nigeria limited  
8 louis Solomon Close  
off Ahmadu Bello Way  
Victoria Island  
lagos

PayMaster limited  
8 louis Solomon Close  
off Ahmadu Bello Way  
Victoria Island 
lagos
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